Public Document Pack

Penelope Williams
Governance and Scrutiny Officer
Direct: 020 8132 1330

email: penelope.williams@enfield.gov.uk

ENVIRONMENT FORUM
Wednesday, 25th November, 2020 at 7.00 pm (Virtual Meeting)
Click here to attend the meeting
Membership: Councillors - Mahmut Aksanoglu, Anne Brown, Katherine Chibah
(Chair) and Lindsay Rawlings
AGENDA – PART 1
1.

WELCOME AND APOLOGIES

2.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or
non pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda.

3.

DISCUSSION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND OTHER PLANNING
POLICIES (Pages 1 - 2)
To note the details of how to raise an item for discussion on planning
applications and other planning policies.
To consider any applications put forward for discussion.

4.

WASTE DISPOSAL AND NORTH LONDON HEAT AND POWER
PROJECT (Pages 3 - 24)
To receive a presentation from North London Waste on waste disposal and
the North London Heat and Power Project.

1

5.

DEVELOPMENT OF GREEN
STRATEGY (Pages 25 - 36)

INFRASTRUCTURE

AND

PARKS

To receive a presentation for discussion on the new green infrastructure and
parks strategy.
6.

MINUTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 27 OCTOBER 2020 (Pages 37
- 48)
To receive and agree the minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2020.

7.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 (Pages 49 - 50)
To note the revised work programme for 2020/21.

8.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
To note the dates agreed for future meetings of the Forum:






Thursday10 December 2020
Wednesday 13 January 2021
Tuesday 16 February 2021
Tuesday 30 March 2021
Wednesday 28 April 2021

2

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

ENVIRONMENT FORUM - REFERRAL PROCESS ARRANGEMENTS (Planning
Applications)
1.

The Forum agenda may include major applications made under planning
legislation which affect the categories in the Forum terms of reference (e.g.
major planning application affecting heritage assets, listed building
applications and major planning applications within the green belt, including
sites adjacent to the green belt affecting its setting). The definition of a major
planning application is given in regulations and is any planning application
where:
1.
2.
3.
4.

for residential development, the proposal involves 10+ dwellings or
exceeds 0.5 hectare,
for non-residential development, the proposal involves a building of +
1000 m² or the site exceeds 1+ hectare
the proposal is for waste development
the proposal is for development on a site having an area of 1 hectare
or more

2.

Members of the Forum may request relevant applications be added to the
agenda by submitting the request in writing (e-mail) to the Governance team
within 4 weeks of the application registration date (as published on the weekly
list of applications received) and no later than 10 days prior to the Forum
agenda despatch date.

3.

Governance
to
consult
Planning
Service
(Penelope
Williams
Penelope.Williams@enfield.gov.uk) on referral requests prior to referral to
Chair.

4.

Acceptance of referral requests will be the decision of the Chair of the Forum.

5.

Where referral requests are approved, the Governance team shall invite the
planning application agent to present the proposals to the Forum.
Presentations shall last no longer than 15 minutes, followed by a Q&A and
debate of no longer than 15 minutes (unless otherwise agreed).

6.

Officers shall not be members of the Forum and a technical analysis of
planning applications by officers shall not form part of the process. Officers
may request relevant applications and projects be added to the agenda
following the same procedure as Forum members.

7.

The purpose of the Forum is to air and acknowledge issues raised by Forum
members on applications and proposals. Forum members will already make
representations direct to case and project officers. The added value of the
Forum is to provide an arena for issues to be aired.

8.

In the spirit of an advisory board, the output of the Forum in the form of a
minute of the discussion, will be to highlight issues that Officers are asked to
consider, as part of the assessment of the planning application.

Page 2

Enfield Environmental Forum
25 November 2020

Page 3

Agenda Item 4
1

About the North London Waste Authority
•

•

•

We serve over two million people and deal with
three per cent of the UK’s household waste. We
are the second largest waste authority in the
country.
Our highest priority is to minimise and avoid
waste. This helps to protect the planet and
preserve resources for future generations
We are proud of our wide-reaching and awardwinning programme of activity to support waste
reduction and increased recycling.

1. Changing behaviour
Page 4

•

NLWA is the statutory waste disposal authority for
the north London boroughs of Barnet, Camden,
Enfield, Hackney, Haringey, Islington and Waltham
Forest.

2. Reusing material
3. Recycling materials
4. Recovering energy

5. Targeting zero landfill

2

Providing essential waste services for our
residents
Working with boroughs to maintain essential waste
services during the pandemic.

•

Providing vital communications to our residents about the
safe disposal of waste.

•

After closure in the initial lockdown period, reopening
seven reuse and recycling centres in north London,
offering a safe service for residents. They have stayed
open through the latest restrictions.

•

Keeping our plant at Edmonton EcoPark operational, to
ensure the ongoing hygienic, reliable and efficient
treatment of non-recyclable waste.

Page 5

•

3

Waste prevention and recycling

Largest waste prevention programme in London

•

Swish and Style events – London’s biggest clothes swaps

•

Creating low plastic zones – the first in the UK

•

The London Upcycling Show

•

Repair cafes across north London

•

Adapting to coronavirus restrictions by providing
webinars, on-line information and increased social media
activity to inform and help residents

•

We assess that our waste prevention activities help
reduce waste by 10,000 tonnes per year

Page 6

•

4

Background to the NLHPP
The current plant at Edmonton EcoPark is one of the
oldest energy from waste plants serving in Europe. It is
reaching the end of its operational life and we now need
to invest in a replacement to avoid landfilling in the
future.

•

Work started in 2019 to prepare the site for
construction and construction of the replacement facility
will complete in 2025.

•

The NLHPP will provide proven, reliable and safe
infrastructure for our residents. It is a vital part of our
sustainable waste strategy for the future.

Page 7

•

Existing energy from waste plant at Edmonton EcoPark

5

Development Consent Order and
Consultation
•
•
•

•

Page 8

•

Major projects require thorough preparation
Two stages of public consultation were held in 2015.
Following this a Development Consent Order application
was submitted, including environmental assessment and
analysis of alternative options
This gave the public the further chance to express views to
the Planning Inspectorate, and a public hearing was held
Development Consent was granted by the Secretary of
State for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy in 2017

The project is aligned with Enfield’s ambition to make
Edmonton an area of high quality industrial activity. Through
Enfield’s own company Energetik, it will supply heat to homes
at Meridian Water
6

Tackling the Climate Emergency
• The NLHPP is part of the solution for tackling the Climate Emergency. It is one of
the largest public infrastructure projects in London. It will safeguard sustainable waste
services as London transitions to Net Zero.
Page 9

• It aligns with landfill reduction policies set by the Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change, the European Union, UK Government, Greater London Authority,
north London’s boroughs and the NLWA.
• It supports higher recycling rates across north London, through the provision of a
new Resource Recovery Facility and public Reuse and Recycling Centre.
• The NLHPP follows the example of the most environmentally-advanced countries
in Europe, including Germany and Denmark, who recycle over 50% of their waste,
avoid landfill, and use non-recyclable waste as a resource to generate heat and
electricity.
• The NLHPP will generate low-carbon heat and power for up to 127,000 homes.
The provision of heat will help unlock the sustainable development of thousands of
new homes and businesses at Meridian Water.

7

Protecting Air Quality
•
•

•

•

Page 10

•

Modern energy from waste facilities are equipped with highly
effective technology to remove pollutants from flue gas (the gas that
results from the combustion of waste).
There is a misconception that emissions from energy from waste
plants contain significant levels of pollutants and that they are
associated with health risks, despite there being no evidence to
support this.
The Energy Recovery Facility will use the world’s highest performing
and proven technologies to clean and control emissions. This
includes emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulates.
This technology is so effective that, for the majority of the year,
concentrations of NOx and particulates from the ERF at ground level
in Edmonton will be effectively zero. Pollutants from the ERF will only
be measurable for a few hours a year, and this will be at 2% of the
relevant air quality standard.
Across London, the new ERF will cause only 0.1% of particulates
and 0.7% of NOx in the atmosphere. In contrast, road transport
causes around 48% of NOx and 26% of particulates in London.
8

NLHPP layout

Page 11
9

Resource Recovery Facility
• First ever public reuse
and recycling centre at
the EcoPark
Page 12

• Part of NLWA’s strategy
to boost recycling rates
across north London
• Will enable more
materials to be sorted
for recycling – including
wood, plastic and metal
• Capacity to manage
around 135,000 tonnes
of recyclable material
every year, with potential
for more in the future
Indicative image of the Resource Recovery Facility (looking south)

10

Resource Recovery Facility diagram

Page 13
11

EcoPark House

• Community hub for the
circular economy
Page 14

• Two-storey pavilion adjacent
to the River Lee Navigation
o Visitor centre
o Community and
education facilities
o Stores and facilities for
Edmonton Sea Cadets
• Dedicated lecture rooms,
exhibition space and
accommodation for the
Edmonton Sea Cadets, as
well as classrooms, toilets,
showers, changing rooms
Indicative image of EcoPark House (looking north)

12

Energy Recovery Facility
• Advanced Moving Grate
Technology; reliable, robust
and proven
Page 15

• District Heating Capability;
set at minimum of 35 MWth
• Selective Catalytic
Reduction; highest
performing equipment
available for NOx removal
• Combined Wet/Dry Flue Gas
Cleaning System; very
efficient for the removal of
pollutants during peak flows.
The first facility in the UK to
use this technology

Indicative image of the Energy Recovery (looking north)

13

ERF layout and emission control
technologies

Page 16
14

Construction Timetable

Page 17
15

Construction and Procurement Progress
Construction started in January 2019 with the temporary
laydown area to the east of the River Lee which completes
in January 2021.

•

Enfield-based company Galldris Construction Ltd has been
appointed under three contracts awards for preparatory
works, including a temporary transport yard which has now
been received into operation by LEL.

•

Specialist tunnelling contractor, Barhale, have commenced
work to divert the sewers to the south of the Ecopark to
enable construction of the Resource Recovery Facility.

•

Taylor Woodrow have been appointed to design and
construct the RRF and Ecopark House and are
approaching the end of the design and planning stage.
Construction starts in January 2020.

•

ERF procurement is underway with first stage tender
submissions from shortlisted tenderers due in March 2021.

Page 18

•

Image of construction work on the Sewer Diversion, November 2020

16

COVID-19 Secure Construction
Construction was paused on all NLHPP construction
sites in March 2020, including the Laydown Area and
Eastern Access, Northern Access Road, Hawley Road
Transport Yard and the Sewer Diversion enabling
works.

•

Safe systems of work were developed to allow for
safe and rapid remobilisation, in line with guidance
from the Construction Leadership Council and Public
Health England.

•

We have developed plans to ensure safe social
distancing and working bubbles, modified our welfare
arrangements and adopted safe travel plans.

•

We have had no onward transmission of COVID-19 in
the workplace in our construction workforce of over
120.

Page 19

•

17

An asset owned and run locally
Committed to high levels of safety, “blue book”
employment requirements to protect workers’ rights, a
guarantee of London living wage

•

Across the project 2500 jobs, 100 apprenticeships – 11
already started - and over 225 training opportunities to
help young people get into the construction sector.

•

Operated by LondonEnergy Ltd – wholly owned by
NLWA. Allows us to improve and modernise the plant
over its life, eg being part of a future national carbon
capture and storage plan

•

No PFI costs – Manchester has an annual budget of over
£180m compared with NLWA’s £70m – the population
served is only 10% larger

Page 20

•

Florentia Theori (left), the first apprentice on the NLHPP, with Councillor Clyde
Loakes (right) – image from February 2020
18

Engaging the local community

Roadshows at local community venues

•

Quarterly Community Liaison Groups (including
digital update in May 2020)

•

Website updates and FAQs
(www.northlondonheatandpower.london)

•

Construction videos

•

Twitter (@NLHPP)

•

Dedicated email and phone number for enquiries

•

Facebook (@northlondonheatandpowerproject)

•

Regular construction newsletters to 19,000
residents, as well as a digital version

Page 21

•

Roadshow in Edmonton Green Shopping Centre (December 2019)

19

Member and Borough Officer Engagement
on the Project
•

Format member meetings to consider the project are:
– Authority meetings (five in each municipal year)
– Programme Committee meetings in months where no Authority meeting
Programme Committee has remit to oversee NLHPP and can make decisions on all matters
relating to NLHPP (as well as the Authority).

•

Programme Committee membership is seven Members, one from each borough; papers are
available to all Members.

•

Partnership Board is the main liaison between NLHPP and senior Borough Officers – one
Director, either Environment or Finance, per borough.

•

Regular liaison with Directors of Finance on NLHPP costs, borrowing and levy impact.

•

Regular liaison with Directors of Environment.

Page 22

•

20

Questions?

Page 23
21

This page is intentionally left blank

Enfield’s
Blue & Green Strategy
Valuing our parks, open spaces, trees &
waterways

Striving for excellence

www.enfield.gov.uk

Agenda Item 5

Wednesday 25 November
Philip Wadsworth
Infrastructure Delivery Manager

Page 25

Valuing our parks, open spaces
&to
waterways
Presentation
Environment Forum

Why are we preparing a strategy?

Page 26

• Update to Parks & Open Spaces
Strategy (ends this year 2020) &
Biodiversity Action Plan
• Covid-19 & climate change
emergency response
• Use spaces to support
community groups (e.g. friends of
parks) & events (e.g. festivals)
• Growth & cultural agenda (e.g.
evidence to support new Local
Plan, Cultural Strategy &
Heritage Strategy)
• Multi-functional benefits (e.g.
health & well-being)

Page 27

Page 28

Structure & content
Part 2: Standards &
requirements

• Long term vision
• Aims & objectives
• Corridors of
opportunity
• Strategic priorities
& projects
• Delivery &
implementation

• Assessment of
parks & open
spaces
• Condition / status
of wildlife sites &
waterbodies
• Open space &
accessibility
standards

Part 3: Action plan

• Meet service &
operational
requirements (e.g.
management &
maintenance)
• Theme-based
actions & targets
• Promote local
ownership

Page 29

Part 1: Strategy

Overall strategy
•

•
•

•

Page 30

•
•

Long term vision: We will become
greenest borough in London at the
heart of the national park
Spatial framework: Corridors, nodes,
spokes & hubs of the network
Strategic projects & programmes to
create a more integrated, multifunctional network (e.g. Enfield Chase,
Green Loop & improved links to Lee
Valley Regional Park)
Delivery & implementation
External & internal partnerships (e.g.
friends of parks)
Community action & event planning
(e.g. events policy)

Page 31

Page 32

Audit of blue & green assets

Page 33

• Up-to-date assessment (surpluses/deficits) of parks,
open spaces, play, waterspaces & green grid links
• Standards & targets (e.g. open space, urban greening &
accessibility)
• Site surveys (e.g. SINCs)
• Review of BAP targets & priorities (habitats & species)
• Integrated mapping (LUC & Imperial College)

Page 34

Indicative timetable
Stage

Workshops
Surveys
Bang the
table
Cabinet / Full
Council
Post adoption Action plan
& review

Who

When

Engage with
public bodies,
local groups
& charities

November 2020
January
2021
Early 2021
Late 2021

Page 35

External
consultation
on the draft
strategy
Adoption

How

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 37

Agenda Item 6

ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE ENVIRONMENT
FORUM HELD ON TUESDAY, 27TH OCTOBER, 2020
MEMBERS: Councillors Mahmut Aksanoglu, Katherine Chibah (Associate Cabinet
Member (Enfield West)) and Lindsay Rawlings
Dennis Stacey (Bush Hill Park Study Group)
Andrew Newman (Clay Hill Study Group)
John West (Enfield Society)
Carol Cragoe (Enfield Town Conservation Area Study Group)
Ann Bishop Laggett (The Federation of Enfield Residents and Allied Associations)
Denise Gandhi (Southgate Green Study Group)
Juliett Barnett (Trent Park Conservation Area Study Group)
Robert Wilson (Hadley Wood Conservation Area Study Group)
Chris Horner (Southgate District Civic Trust)
Paul Hutchinson (Grange Park Conservation Area Study Group)
Officers: Doug Wilkinson (Director of Environment and Operational Services), Helen
Murch (Head of Strategic Planning and Design), Richard Eason (Programme Director
Healthy Streets), Christine White (Heritage and Urban Design Manager), Metin Halil
(Governance and Scrutiny) and Penelope Williams (Secretary)
Also Attending: Mairead Flower (Iceni Projects), Nick Grant (Iceni Projects), Laurie
Hancock (Iceni Projects) Gerard Maccreanor (Maccreanor and Lavington Architects)

1.

WELCOME AND APOLOGIES
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Anne Brown.

2.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest.

3.

CHANGE IN THE ORDER OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
It was agreed to change the order in which items were considered at the
meeting. Item 6 on the agenda was taken as the next item. The minutes
reflect the order of the meeting.

4.

DISCUSSION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND OTHER PLANNING
POLICIES
1.

Planning Applications

Page 38
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020
Members noted the procedure for referring items for discussion at the forum,
as attached to the agenda.
2.

100 Church Street

The forum received a presentation from the applicants on the proposals for
100 Church Street.
2.1

Presentation

The following information was highlighted in the presentation:


There were significant pressures on land in Enfield to build more
housing and it was important to make sensitive, efficient use of sites
that were available. To regenerate the High Street, it was necessary to
have more people living nearby.



These proposals had been developed collaboratively, taking account of
strategic frameworks and with input from planning and conservation
officers.



What was proposed would replace the not particularly attractive 1980’s
office building, which had a poor relationship with its surroundings and
did not add to the character of the area.



The site was situated in the middle of a swathe of green running
through the middle of a built-up area, from Town Park, along the New
River to Chase Green, within the Gentleman’s Row Conservation Area.
It was close to Enfield Town Centre and next to several landmark
buildings, including the two grey stone churches.



In London, between 1870 and 1912, there had been significant
developments of mansion block type housing, which reflected the style
of contemporary houses of the time, including bay windows and
detailing on elevations, taken from domestic architecture. These
buildings had used space more economically. They were able to hide
their density with the use of interior courtyards, well planted green
areas, that flowed into the public realm, clear front doors, integrated
balconies, and crumbly massing.



The new proposals for the site included two buildings: one of 5 stories
another of 7 stories set-back with a roof garden. There were to be two
main entrances, in Church Street and off the New River Path behind so
that the building could be seen in the round facing both ways.



Pale grey brick work with a white band around the top had been
chosen to blend in with the surroundings and compliment the two stone
churches nearby. Traditional red brick had been considered but it had
been felt that this would be too overpowering.

Page 39
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020


The green areas would be managed by the block to ensure that they
would merge with surroundings. Vehicle access would be through the
church car park.



Views from neighbouring areas, including Gentleman’s Row, showed
that the building would fit unobtrusively into its setting and would be
further masked by existing mature trees, even in winter.

2.2

Questions/Comments


Members were pleased that the buildings were not as high as some
others recently proposed in the area.



Concern about the environmental impact of flats with two bathrooms.
Members were assured that the proposals conformed to current
regulations to ensure water usage was kept as low as possible.



The building was divided up equally between one and two-bedroom
flats. Thirty five percent of these would be classed as affordable. This
was based on the needs of the area.



Concern about the number of flats in relation to the number of disabled
parking spaces. It was confirmed that 3% of the flats were for disabled
people with three parking spaces.



The buildings were to be mainly car free except for the provision of
three disabled car parking spaces in the main courtyard. The flats
would be close to Enfield Chase station and so car ownership should
not be necessary. The suggestion was made that the Council should
consider creating nearby park and ride facilities or strengthen the
controlled parking zones to avoid local streets becoming full of parked
cars arising from the development.



Access to waste disposal facilities and deliveries would be at the back
of the building through the church carpark. Delivery vehicles would be
able to drive into the courtyard. It should not affect traffic flow in
Church Street.



A consultation process had been undertaken over the last 6 months
through online events, interactive forums with information on websites,
consultation with local resident and conservation groups, the Council’s
design panel and residents living nearby had been contacted. The
formal consultation process had ended on the preceding week. All the
responses were still to be considered. Gentleman’s Row Residents
Association and Enfield Town Conservation Area Study Group had not
been consulted on the proposals.



The planning application was likely to be heard at Planning Committee
at the end of November or some time in December.

Page 40
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020



The view that the building was well articulated and blended well with
the surroundings, but still had the appearance of a 70’s office block.
The white detailing was not thought to stand out enough.



Most of the original old London mansion blocks had been built in red
brick. Some thought that a red brick building would fit in better
matching the nearby former magistrates court building. Others felt that
red brick would be too heavy and imposing. The applicants had thought
that paler brick would be lighter, more enjoyable and provide good
contrast in tone and texture to fit in better with the grey stone of the
nearby churches. This company had won awards for its brick work.
The white top was designed to fade into the sky.



Concern about one of the bay windowed flats, almost touching the
boundary of the site, the interior of which would be visible to those
walking along the New River Path. This could result in residents
putting up heavily shuttered windows and barred doors which were
unattractive. Having the green areas within the management of the
site would mean that the landscape would be protected and should
merge with the public realm areas along the river. The boundary was
5-6 metres from the river.



The request for more designs showing what the rear of the building
with the service areas would look like. The response that the rear of
the building would look very similar to the front with the same
treatments and materials. Flats at the back would also have balconies
and bay windows. The buildings were meant to be seen in the round.



The ivy on one of the trees in front of the building needed to be
removed to protect the tree.



Preference for the northern block which worked well but concern about
the southern block which was felt to be to two stories too tall, too
blocky, significantly taller that than the building it replaced and too
close to the New River. This would tower above the nearby bowling
green, churches and appear to be very dominant and overpowering
particularly from the southern approach to Enfield Town.



The view that the Council should do more to provide information about
where taller buildings would be acceptable. Development in Enfield
was too developer led.



The need to prevent residents putting up satellite dishes.



The views had been verified with the Council’s conservation officer.
The view from Silver Street had been considered, but the buildings
could not be seen from there.

Page 41
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020


Stepping back the upper layers of the buildings could be considered
but there was a need to avoid the design becoming too fussy. A
concern of planning officers. There could be some flexibility in the
design at the top of the building, dropping the parapets and giving the
buildings a greener edge. This would be considered.



The architect agreed to relook at the design of the bay window block
closest to the New River.

Councillor Chibah thanked the applicants’ representatives
presentation and the members of the forum for their questions.

for

their

The applicants’ representatives left the meeting at this point.
Councillor Chibah summed up the view of the forum as follows:
Although there was some support for the proposals, which were felt to be
better than many others that had been put forward in Enfield recently and a
feeling that it was a reasonably designed scheme, there were some concerns.
There concerns were:











The lack of parking, the impact this would have on surrounding streets
and traffic in the area. The need to strengthen local controlled parking
zones.
The lack of affordable family housing (3 and 4 bedrooms)
The lack of consultation with some conservation and residents’ groups.
The preference of some for red brick rather than grey. Although other
members were happy with grey.
The close proximity of the bay windows, in the rear block, to the
boundary of the site and the New River Path.
That the development was too blocky, the southern block too tall which
would impact on the views from the south and the entrance to the town.
That the detailing on and articulation of the southern and western faces
of the block was inferior to that of the northern block.
The waste disposal proposals and the absence of detailed designs
showing the service areas to the rear.
The environmental impact of the two bathrooms.
The proximity to the bowling green.

The view of the forum, as summed up above, would be submitted for the
attention of the planning officers for use when putting together the report on
the planning application for consideration at Planning Committee.
5.

ENABLING ACTIVE TRAVEL ACROSS ENFIELD
The forum received a presentation from Richard Eason (Programme Director
Healthy Streets) on enabling active travel in Enfield.

Page 42
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020
1.

Presentation

Richard Eason highlighted the following from his presentation:


Enfield Council declared a climate emergency in 2019.



Thirty nine percent of Enfield’s carbon dioxide emissions came from
transport.



Car travel was increasing and obesity is an issue. Enfield has one of
the highest obesity rates in London. Everyone needs to be more
physically active.



Recent local and national strategies have focussed on enabling people
to use more active forms of transport especially walking and cycling.
Projects are being put in place across London as well as nationally and
in Europe. Paris has had a lot of success recently in introducing car
free streets and bringing many more cyclists onto the streets.



Enfield is slowly adding to its cycling network and putting in place
pedestrian improvements. Work had begun creating a pocket park in
Little Park Gardens as start of the wider improvements planned for
Enfield Town. An online consultation on the proposals is taking place
“Lets Talk Enfield Town”. Cycle parking facilities are being installed at
transport hubs and in residential streets with the aim of improving the
whole user journey across different modes better.



Quieter Neighbourhoods were one aspect of this work, closing off small
residential streets to prevent rat running and enable people to access
active travel networks more safely.



Community events had also been held and events such as secondhand bike markets.



The school streets scheme had created safe spaces for children
travelling to school on bike and foot.



All this work should encourage more people of all ages to participate in
active travel.



Encouraging other sustainable journeys via buses and trains is also
fundamental to help encourage people to avoid using cars. There were
challenges ahead and schemes would take time to bed in. The impact
of all schemes would be continually monitored.



Members were encouraged to access the “Let’s Talk Website”, a tool to
find out what residents think about schemes, to feed their views into
the various consultations.

Page 43
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020
2.

Questions/Comments

2.1

Concern that the Quieter Neighbourhoods Schemes were causing a
build-up of traffic on main roads such as Alderman’s Hill, and that this
would increase carbon dioxide emissions. The response that the
situation was being monitored and the Council would shortly be
repeating speed and volume counts to judge impact.

2.2

The need to acknowledge that it would take time for the schemes to
settle in and for traffic volumes to stabilise. The overall aim was to
reduce car journeys, not to divert traffic to other roads, but to
encourage people to use other more sustainable modes of transport.
Traffic jams in themselves were a deterrent. Officers would continue to
work with local communities to improve the schemes. Government
funding restrictions had meant that these had had to be introduced
more quickly and with less advance consultation, than would have
been preferred.

2.2

Concern about changes to the Highway Code to ensure that
pedestrians had priority in shared facilities. The Highway code
consultation was continuing. And although Enfield does have some
shared facilities, problems were not envisaged.

2.3

Currently the Bush Hill Park Cycling Hub was closed. Richard Eason
agreed to discuss, with his colleagues, what could be done to enable it
to re-open more quickly.

2.4

More focus needed to be put on discouraging people from using their
cars.

2.5

Concern that buses were becoming overcrowded. The Council was
continuing to work with Transport for London on possible new routes.

2.6

It was felt that more needed to be done to enforce mask wearing. Data
on mask adherence was not to hand. Richard Eason agree to ask
officers to talk to Transport for London about the concerns. It was
suggested that Transport for London Staff themselves should be
monitored to make sure that they were wearing masks.

2.7

Praise for the 12 school streets schemes which had been felt to be
very successful, despite small teething problems. There was however
still more to be done to encourage parents not to drive their children to
school and to convince them that it was safe to cycle and walk. Most
Enfield children lived within walking distance of their schools.

2.8

More needed to be done to educate people about the benefits of living
more sustainably. Many were reluctant to accept change. Electric
cars were not the solution to problems such as increased traffic
volumes and narrow streets.

Page 44
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020
2.9

The Government were keen to avoid a car led Covid recovery and this
was the reason that some schemes had been introduced so quickly.

2.10

The suggestion was made that more information on road closures
should be given to Google Maps to encourage people not to go down
certain roads and to encourage people to travel at less busy times.
This could also be achieved by offering senior discounts at quieter
times of the day. One of the reasons behind the traffic increases in
residential streets was the increasing use of google maps, making
drivers more award of alternative routes. Officers would look to inform
the sat nav companies of road changes more quickly.

The Chair thanked Richard Eason for his excellent presentation and all the
members for their contributions, which were noted above.

6.

HOUSING NEEDS - CAPACITY AND DESIGN OF BUILDINGS
The forum received a presentation from Christine White (Heritage and Urban
Design Manager) on housing needs: capacity and design of buildings.
1.

Presentation

Christine White highlighted the following from her presentation:


Over the next 10-15 years Enfield’s population was due to rise by
50,000 creating a total of 170,000 households.



Currently we are only delivering 77% of the houses that the London
Plan requires. There is a need to close this gap and to create
approximately 20,000 new homes over the next ten years.



In developing new areas of housing, Enfield would need to consider
quantum, location, options of density and different typologies.



Enfield would have to evolve and retrofit suburban places, increase
density introduce new typologies, create additional uses, provide
connections to public transport and enhance the landscape.



The Council would be taking a design led approach to balancing
growth against the local character and heritage of the borough.



A characterisation study, undertaken in 2011, had identified most of the
housing in the borough as of suburban or quasi suburban typology.
Although this varied. There was some high density housing in the
East, as well as numbers of Victorian terraces, larger scale

Page 45
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020
developments, older lower density suburban housing and flats around
metroland centres.

2.



The GLA had recently produced London Plan Module D: Good Quality
Housing for all Londoners. This guidance contained lots of examples
of good practice and can be found on the London.Gov.UK website. It
referenced 7 different housing design typologies.



Residential conversions and extensions which could increase housing
provision through the sub-division of existing housing and building new
units on existing sites. Larger properties and larger commercial
buildings could also be converted into flats.



There were opportunities to build more single houses on infill sites and
on underused back land. Typical density 150-200 hrph.



A cluster of houses was a small selection of housing built in one block,
optimising site capacity. Typical density 100-200 hrph



A terrace was a row of individual houses with private gardens or
courtyards suitable for family housing. Typical density 200-250 hrph.



Linear blocks had a higher density than terraces 400-600 hrph, often
with maisonettes on the ground floor as well as above.



The villa block had a central core with efficient circulation with three to
five dwellings per floor and an indicative density of 400-600 hrph.



Tower blocks, which are defined as buildings with ten or more stories,
could have indicative densities of more than 1000 hrph. With a central
core, efficient circulation and 4-5 dwellings per floor.



Tower blocks take up less land and provide more housing. Suburban
housing takes up the most land and provides the least housing.



It was important to take account of policy constraints on land use
including conservation areas, green belt and strategic industrial land.



Enfield would need to allow the building of a mixture of all the different
building typologies to meet housing need. This will inevitably change
the character of the borough.
Questions/Comments

2.1 Concern that any new properties would be taken by people coming into
the borough, rather than those that currently live here, which could
increase the population even more.

Page 46
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020
2.2 Clarification was sort on how housing needs were being assessed and
whether the figures had taken account of the decrease in the
numbers of young people coming as a result of Brexit.
2.3 It was going to be a challenge to find the space needed for the extra
houses in Enfield. Tower blocks used the land available most
efficiently. Enfield will not be able to meet the need through low
density housing alone. There were fears that the changes would
dramatically change the character of the borough.
2.4 The Government’s new planning legislation would have an impact, but
it is not yet clear how this will affect the Local Plan.
2.5 The suggestion was made that the Council should fight against these
housing targets and suggest that housing was provided instead by
building new satellite towns outside London.
2.6 Concern was expressed about how the conservation areas would be
protected and how the need for more 3-4 bedroom family homes
would be accommodated. Tower blocks would not provide suitable
housing for families.
2.7 The suggestion was made that the Council should refuse to accept the
Mayor of London’s housing targets.
2.8 Concern that it was taking too long to produce and agree the new local
plan and that too much development in Enfield was being led by
speculative developers, rather than planned by the Council. It was
essential that Enfield specify which typologies it wanted where.
2.9 The Local Plan had by law to be in conformity with the Mayor of
London’s plan. The Council had made representations and was
now waiting final publication. The Government’s new planning white
paper had caused a pause and thrown things up in the air.
2.10

Anyone with concerns about the Government’s planning reforms
was urged to feed their views into the public consultation.

The Chair thanked Christine White for her presentation and apologised that
the forum had not been able to spend as much time as she would have liked
on this issue. She hoped that the forum could come back and discuss it in
more detail, later in the year. Officers would take on board the desire of all
members to preserve the heritage and character of the borough.
7.

MINUTES FROM THE MEETING HELD ON 1 OCTOBER 2020
The minutes of the meeting held on 1 October 2020 were received and
agreed as a correct record.

8.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

Page 47
ENVIRONMENT FORUM - 27.10.2020

The Forum noted the following changes to the work programme;


9.

The item on Community initiatives promoting environmental
sustainability which was to have been discussed at this meeting would
now be considered at the meeting to be held on 10 December 2020.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS
The forum noted the dates agreed for future meetings:







Wednesday 25 November 2020
Thursday 10 December 2020
Wednesday 13 January 2021
Tuesday 16 February 2021
Tuesday 30 March 2021
Wednesday 28 April 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Environment Forum

Environment Forum: Work Programme 2020/21
ITEM

Support
Officers

18 Aug
2020

1 Oct
2020

27 Oct
2020

25 Nov
2020

10 Dec
2020

13 Jan
2021

16 Feb
2021

Work Programme 2020/21

Penelope
Williams
Jeremy
Chambers

To
agree

To
review
Update

To
review

To
review

To
review

To
review

To
review

Dominic
Millen /
Carol
Culligan /
Peter
Nathan
Dominic
Millen
Dominic
Millen / TfL

For
discussion

Membership Review

30
March
2020
To
review

28
April
2020
To
review

Sustainable Transport
Under 18s and Freedom Passes
Concessionary Travel

Impact of Covid 19 on Bus and
Rail Services including cleaning
procedures
Expansion of the ULEZ to the
North Circular
Public Realm Changes to support
cycling and walking

Government Housing Retrofit
Programme
Refurbishment and Retrofit in
Schools

Waste Disposal and North London
Heat and Power Project
17 November 2020

For
discussion

For
discussion

For
discussion

Dominic
Millen / TfL
Dominic
Millen /
Richard
Eason
Dominic
Millen /
Harriet
Potemkin
Dominic
Millen
Dominic
Millen /
Andrew
Whelan
Doug
Wilkinson

For
discussion

For
Discussion

For
discussion
For
discussion

For
discussion

Agenda Item 7

Climate Action
Community Initiatives promoting
environmental sustainability

Dominic
Millen / TfL

Page 49

Further Rail Devolution TfL taking
over GTR services
Bus Economics
Cost of Running Services

Environment Forum

ITEM

Environment
Air quality in the Borough
Enforcement in the Green Belt
Workshop on development of green
infrastructure and Parks Strategy

Rewilding and tree planting
Future landscape of planning
including white paper and extension
of permitted development
Local Plan Policies

Whitewebbs
Heritage and Design
Use of Heritage Lottery Funding
Workshop on housing needs,
capacity and design of buildings
Major applications that
substantially affect
conservation areas
Monitoring the Listed Buildings and
Local List

17 November 2020

18 Aug
2020

1 Oct
2020

27 Oct
2020

10 Dec
2020

13
Jan
2021

16 Feb
2021

Andy
Higham
Christine
White

28 April
2020

For
discussio
n
For
discussion

For
discussion
For
discussion

For
discussion

For
discussion

Christine
White
Various

30
March
2020

For
discussion

Ned
Johnson
Andy
Higham
Ian Russell
/ Marcus
Harvey /
Regen?
Ian Russell
Vincent
Lacavora /
Helen
Murch
Helen
Murch
Andy
Higham

25 Nov
2020

For
discussion

100
Church
Street

Palace
Gardens

For
discussion

Page 50

Major applications that substantially
affect the Green Belt
Footpaths and Rights of Way
Fair Trade Status for the Borough

Support
Officer

